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1--···-_·_-.---.. --.. ----. -.. --- --.. ----.... -...... ----.... --
I 

I 

1 r 
Thursday, 25 July, 1946 

i 

2 I .. - -
I 

INr ERNAT I ONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL 
FOR THE FAR EAST 

7 

8 

9 at 0930. 

Court House of the Tribunal 
War Ministry Building 

Tokyo, Japan 

The Tribunal met, pursuant to adjounrment, 

10 - - -

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

Appearances: 
For the Tribunal, same as before, 

For the Prosecution Section,same as before. 

For the Defense Section, same as before. 

L 17 
(English to Japanese, Japanese-to 

English, English to Chinese, and Chinese to 

English interpretation was made by the 

Language Section, IMTFE.) 

..... .' . 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 I 

1_.- . _____ . _____ _ --- ----------------_._. __ .... _ ... . . __ .. _--_ ...•. _--_.----_ .. -----
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MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The In:terna tional 

Military Tribunal to~·the Far East is-now resumed. 

2,478 

THE PRESIDENT: All the accused are present 

except OKAWA who is represented by counsel. Does 

any counsel desire to mention any matter? 

The Chief Referee of the Language Section 

saw me today and complains that on account of the 

unnecessary length of some of the questions, i1;; is 

most difficult for the interpreters to perform their 

duties. Some of the passages from the Lytton Report, 

if not the whole report, have already been translated 

into Japanese, and if the translation were made avail­

able to the interpreters, their duties 'Would not be 

so difficult. 

The interpreters are also having difficulty 

with questions which are in negative form, although 

they could be in affirmative form. I again urge 

counsel to make their questions short and clear, and 

to give du~ notice of any passage from a report or 

other document which they desire to be read to a wit-

ness. 

Is there any further cross-examination? 

MR. T. OKAMOTO: May I be permitted to continue 

my cross-examination of yesterday? 
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CHING ~ROSS 

1 e H I N G T E H - C HUN, called .as a witnes* on 

2 behalf of the prosecution, resumed the stand and 

3 testified as follows: 

4 CROSS.EXAMINATION (Continued) 

5 BY MR. T· •. ~OKAMOTO:' 

6 Q Since the reply· to my last question yester-

7 day was not c1ear~, I should like to hav~ it repeated. 

8 A Yesterday I answered to the question by 

9 saying that it was because the Japanese occupation of 

10 Tientsin and PeipiI].g that many of the Chinese students 

11 were Communis·ts and compelled to join the Communist 

12 Party. So it can be said that it was the Japanese 

131 who indirectly nurtured the growth of!the Co~unists. 

141 Your present explanation does not seem to 

15 show any relationship between cause and effect. Could 

16 you explain i t furth~r? 

17 A Wh.~t I have told you is concrete fact. 

18 ,Students, because of the fact that Tientsin ,Peip:tng , 

19 and surrounding areas fell to the Japanese, were,com'" 

20 

21 

22 

23 

pelled to join the Chinese Communists. 

a concrete fact. 

Q When was that? 

This fact is 

A That is referring to some time attar July 

24 7t}1, 1937. 
25 Q Then, do you mean to' say that this was after 

I ' 
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CHING CROSS 

1 the outbreak of the Marco Polo Bridge InCident, Or 

2 are you trying to explain a situation which existeq 

3 prior to that Incident? 

4 A Referring to the time after the outbreak 

2,486 

5 of the July 7th InCident -- prior to the outbreak ot 

6 the July 7th Incident -- some of the' students may have 

7 been fo~nd to have some Left inclination, but there 

, 8 was never any Communis t troops. 

9 Q Then, are you aware of the fact that ,on the 

io tenth of June, 1935, Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek issued 

11 an executive order for f.riendly relations between two 

12 eighboring countrtes, namely, between China and Japan? 

13 A Yes, I know. 

14 Q Do you know the cause for the proclamation 

15 f such an order? 

A The purpose was to maintain peaCe in China, 

the peace of ASia, and ulti-

world. 

19 Q Was not this order issued to prevent the 

20 eneral anti~Japanese movement in China, especially 

21 'n North China, as well,as the anti-Japanese resistance 

22 ovement carried on by the Communists in that northern 

23 rea'l 

24 At that time there was no anti-Japanese 

25 ove~ent in North China. The purpose of the order was 
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I--------~~· 

1 ~() admonish the people as a whole, as well as the 

2/ChineSe Army, to respect.and be'friends with neighbor 

. 3 Icountries. . " 
I 41 Q Then, Mr. Witness, are you acquainted with 

~IGeneral Shang-'cnenwho was in North China' about 1935''1 

6 TllE MONITOR: Correctio'n: "who was the 

7 Governor of Hopei Province.:" 
! 
i 

81 A Yes, I knoW. 

9 Q Are yoU a~are of the ~act that General Shang-

ro Ichen issued an order to bring under contt'ol anti .. 
I 

11 !.Jarianese terrorists? 
I 

I 
12 ! A No, not that I over heerd of. 

I . 
13 I Q Then t Mr. Wi tne s s, are you aware of the fact 

. 1 

14 Ithat your superior, General Sung Cheyuan, issued an 
! 

15 prdar declaring that very positive steps must be taken 

16 ito bring under control the anti-Japanese secret so-
I 

I 

17 Icieties in November, 1935'7 
I 
I 

18 i A 
I 

That order was given o.n the basis of an • 

19 b1;"der re.ceived -'l')y General$ung from Generalissimo Chiang. 
I 

20 ~hepe was a preventative order, ...... the order was pre'Vent;,.. 
; 

21 ~tive in nature. 
i 

22 : . Q Where is '6enaral Sung Cheyuan at the present 
i, 

23 moment? ---~----

24 i 
I 2~ I 

4. He is already dead noW. 

Q Then, are you aware of the Hsi-an Incident i 
I 
I 
I. i~ _____ ~_ 

--~_--,i 
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ot November, 19361 

A Yes, I know of that. 

Q Was not this InCident one in whtch Marshal 

Changnsueh-liang in collaboration with the Chinese 

, Communistsk1dnapped and placed under custody Gener-
r, 

alissimo Chiang Kai-shek? 

,A That I don't know. 

, COL. MORROW: I raise the question of material­

-1ty and relevancy of this line of questioning, if the 

Court please. 

MR. T. OKAMOTO: This incident has a very 

relevant connection. with the present point. 

THE PRESIDENT: I think it is·as relevant as 

14 a~y of the other matters we have allowed cross-exarn1n-

15 etion about. The whole purpose is to discover the 

16 state ot' China -- its dist",~bed state is suggested, 

17 and it is suggested, I suppose, that the Japanese took 

18 appropriate meaSures to protect their interests there, 

19 and it will be further suggested that they were acting 

20 within treaties,; This i~ a suggestion that the country 

21 was so disturbed that its chief was imprisoned. 

22 You may proceed ~ 

23 : Q _ Poes the witness know what kind of chang~ 
I 

i 
24! took place!n the relationships between the KUQmintang 

I 
I 

25 I and the ChineSe Commuiiist Party as a result of the 

I 

i 

i 
I 
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i Rsi-an Incident? 
1 i 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A No, I don't know. 

Q Where were you, Mr. Witness, at tha~ time~ 

A I was in Peiping then. 

Q What was your .position at that time? 

A Then, I was the Mayor of Peip1ng. What I 

know is this: that after the Incident at Hsi-an, the 

person reS'ponsible for that incident was Chang Hsueh­

liang, became repentant, and then he sent Generalissimo 

back' to N~nking and th~m the people allover the 

country wer~so overwhelmingly jorous that they showed 

the greatest sign of vindicating the Gel1eralissimo, 

and the country was unified as a whole; and Japan, 

then, was so much jealous of that fact. 

Q When you say that China had never been ntore 

. unified than at that time, do you mean to. say .that 

peace and collaboration was established between the 

Kuomintang and the Chinese Communists? 

A Yes,the feeling between the two parties 

werE\" very good then. 

Q Does t~at not mean, then, that the Kuomin~ 

tang resolved jointly with the Chtnese Communists to 

pursue a policy 6f anti-Japanese ~esistance? 

A No, that was not the case. The two parties 

25 joined together to prepare themselves to guard against 

___ t~~ ~~~~e~_o~~:a,:~~~_~f the Japanese .~------------------______ i 

/ 

<.~~:: 
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-~~ ~~---~--I-ta}{~-yo~~;~~en~~-~~~~;- to ~~~-~n --:~~~;~~~---I 
AIl 

~ 2 i ment of the statement included in my question. This 

: 3 fact, together with the fact that General Shang-Chen 

& 4 

M 5 

0 
6 r 

s 
7 e 
8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

. 19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

and General Sung Che-~an suoeessively issued prders 

. to bring under control anti-Japanese terl'orists and 

other light groups is a matter which could be re­

conciled with your p:r'esent reply. 

MONITOR: Correction: I take your anSWer to 

mean the confirmation of the statement contained in 

my question. Now I would like to ask, another question 

on a diffel'ent pOint, that is, in 1935, as I said . 

before, Generalissimo Chiang Kai-shek issued an order 

for maintenance of friently relations with his 

neighbors and then that was followed later by 6rd~rs 

from General Shang-Chen and General Sung Che ... yuan 

for suppression and surveillance over terrorists and 

anti-Japanese secret SOCieties. Now, how can the~e 

facts be reconciled with your present reply? 

THE PliES IDENT : Counsel mus t not make 

statements to the wit.ness. That in effect is largely 

a conversation with the witness. Counsel must con-

fine himself to a'~king questions and the questions 

should be reasonably. brief and clear.l do 'not 

think the witness should be asked to answer that 

question. 'You had better make another attempt. 

. ~-- ~~.~~.-- - ~ - ~-~ -~ ~~ ~ ~ ~~~-.~-~~-~ -~-~~~-.--~-~--~-~ ~-~~--~--~--~~---

i 
! 
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Q 
1 

the executive order issued by the Generalissimo for 
2 . 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

friendly relations between two neighboring countries, 

that is, China and Japan Was effective even after the 

Hsi-an Incident? 

A- Of course,it was conditional upon the fact 

that Japan should, withhold her aggression. 

Q Since the Hsi-anIncident was any order 

issued to you, Mr. Witness, from the eentral head­

quar,ters of the Kuomintang Party with respect to a 

policy of anti-Japanism? 

A No. 

Q At about the time of the outbreak of the 

Marco Polo Incident on July 7, 1937, where was 

General ShihYu-surt?, 

General Shih Yu-sun was first at Peiping 

and after the outbreak of the War against Japan he 

went with General Sung to Paoting. 

19 Q Do yot!. know of the fact the t General 

20 Shih Yu-sun in the dark of the night of July the 

21 7th fired both upon Japanese and Chinese Troops? 

22 ·A What is the time you are referring to? 

23 Is it befprethe o1,ltbreak of the war of July' 7th or 

24 after the outbreak of the war of July 7th? 

25 Q Then I should like t.o ask Y9U, did not the 

i 
. ! 

I 
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~arco Polo Incident break out as a result of the fact 
1 

that General i,hih Yu-WIl fired both on Japanese and 
2 " 
3 Chinese forces? 

4 
A No. That is not the case. I will give you 
~ 

5 some further explanation. At the time the 37th Division 

6 was allegedly anti-Japanese. was .withdrawn from 

7 tt.'l'tll'nOch-1a.o . they were replaced by the trooJ>s under 

8 Peneral Shih Yu-sun, who was then considered as pr-o ... 

9 P"apanese. 

10 Q Vfuen did you, N~. Witness, become a member 

11" p:f the Kuomintang? 

12 A I was a member of Kuomintang at the time the 

13 party was' in i ts. inceptive stage. 

14 

15 

16-

THE PRESIDENT: Captain Brooks. 

MR. BROOKS: Brooks, for OKAWA. 

CROSS ··EXAMINATION (Continued) . . 

17 ~Y MR. BROOY,s g 

18 Q Mr .. Vii tnes s, was a declaration of war made 

19 by China or by Japan at the time of the July, 1937 

20 ~ncident, or prior thereto? 

21 THE FRESIDENT~ That is a matter of which 

22 ~e can take judicial notice a 

23 1IIR. BRomm: If the Tribunal pleaSe, the 

24'~itness states, on page 5, of exhibit 198, which 

25 s prosecution's 4oau~~, 1750, this was the very 
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--------------------- ---- ----- --------- ----------------------- .. --------------1 

1 beginning of the Sino-Japanese War. I wanted to find 

2! out what he had in reference at that time. 

3 THE PRESIDENT: You can have War without 

4 having a dec]arat~n of it, unfortunately. --5 MR. BROOKS: May the witness answer, for 

6 the base of another question I have? 

7 THE PRESIDENT: It is useless, but he may 

8 answer. 

9 4 On the part of China there Was neyer any 

10 order like that, but on the parto! the Japanese 

11 Government, I wonder if there is any order of what 

12 we call punitive war against China. 

13 Q Now, on eXhibit 199, which is prosecution's 

14 document No. 2340, you have stated in- your discussion 

15 with MATSUI you 'advocated that Asia -- that he ad ... 

16 vocated that Asia, should be the Asia of tl1;e Asiatics, 

17 and that European and Ame~icaninfluences should be 

18 expelled. I would_ like further information on the 

19 influences discussed that was considered necessary 

20 to be expelled. I would like further information 

21 on the influences discussed in this conversation 

22 that should be expelled. 

23 A In brief, what he waJ;).ted is to expel the 

The 

25 SUbSequen~facts~athappene~ at Pearl Harbor and 

-. -

I 
I 
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1 

1 ~he attack on Man11a ~rtd other places. will be factu&.l 
I 

2 nouglJ to prove tha t • 

3 THE PRESIDENT: We hacv~ had that answer before. 

4 Q I wish to enlarge upon the anSVler. Did 

~ ~ot certain countries have powerful commercial interests 

6 • n Clnna which they were fostering. ,. . 

71 . COLONEL MORROW: If the Court please, counsel 

8 ror General:MATSUI went into this matter and 1 raise 

9 he question that this is repetition. 

10 THE PRESIDENT: I think the question is 
I 

, llbjectionable on another ground entirely", that unless 

12 t can be shown that the action of other CO'Q.llt,ries 

13 ompelled the action taken by Japan, the whole thing 
I 

14ls irrelevant. 

15\ MR. ~Ol<S: That is exactly what I am going 
I 

\16 to show, if th~ Court plea~e. 

171 COLONEL. MOruiOW: I also raise the question 

18$f relevancy, if the Court please. 
I 

19 I THE PRES1=DENT: That is what I said to Captain 
I 

20,roOkS. 

21 I MR.BROO1*S: I would like to point out, if 

22{he Court p:).ease, that I read and laid the basis for 

23.~his, that certain European and .Amet'icaninfluences . 

24fhOUld be e:><palled. I would like to correct lI\V 

251tatement as to what I ,intend to prove. I do not 
1 ______ --'-_ . ______ _ 

I 

I 
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1 iintend to show that certain nations caused these con­

2 i di tions which b~ough t about this war,. I do believe 
! . 

3 that certain powerful cOlMlercial interests, joining 

4 from. various countries, brought about conditions which 

5 did bring this abou~, and! think with a little 

6 patience on the part of the Court I can bring that 

7 out, and I would like to get the information whieh 

8 this witness has bearing upon it, tor later on I will .. 

9 have witnesses of my own to oarry on. 

10 THE PRESIDENT: If you are not merelyf1shiMg, 

11 b~t. have evidenef) as you suggest, your questions should 

12 be very specific. They sho~ld be based on t~at 

13 evidenoe ,and your q\1estions are not specific; they 

14 are very vague, and I propose to disallow your quae-

15 tiQns until they, ~re made speoitie~ because you now 

16 say you have evidence. You must put your questions 

17 on that evidenoe. 

18 MR. BaOOXS: .. If the Court please, I am now 

19 in the prooess of eross~examinat1on. I arnnot pre-, 
! 

20 Isenting evidenoe on thia phase, but I have a right 
I 

21 Ito knowhow far to carry my eV'idence and what re ... 

22 \striction is placed on the cross-examination on the 
I .. .. 

23 I statement'S made that a conversation waS had) about 

24 [European and American influences. It doesn -tsar 
I 

25 jEuropean and .",\,Dlerican nations; 1 t says influences, 
I 
1 ____ . 
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1 I and I think that is very vital 

2 

3 

4 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

vital to know where China over all this period ot 

year~ got the arms, the war materiel, the equipment, 

and the technical assistance and training necessary 

to prolong this strife, of which Japan was complaining 

because she was the recipient of this strife which 

was carried on over a long period of time. 

THE PRES~1nENT: Will you now state the 

nature of this evidence. You can refuae if you like, 

but at plt'esent So far as you have indicated it appears 

to be too remote. 

MR. BROOKS: If the Court please, I will 

13 show by testimony, by- affidavits, by certain records, 

14 of which I think possibly We will ask the Court to 

,15 take judicial knowledg,e of certain facts, because 

16 1 they are of eommon knowledge, but I do' not wish at 

171 -this time to introduce evidence on this point or to 

18 I eXpose to the prosecution the evidence that we are 
I 

19 i accUlIlula ting • However, I will make one specific 

201 reference to' an American concern, I believe 1 twas 

21 I the CUl'tis-WPightconcern, had a 30 million dollar 
I 

22 i-aircraft plant that they were building in China a t 
! 

23 1 th.s time, a v:ery critical tilne, and I think that 
t 

241 11ill be shown later on in the testimony. If that 

25 I is any indication, I would like to proceed. 
I ----
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._- .. __ ._----_ .. _-_._ ...... _ ......•. -._ ......... . 

W l' 
h 

Ttm PRES IDEm': You have fallen back in this 

alleged evidence for your justification and we will 

fix you there. You have nQw made it transparently 

plain that this evidence that you propose to rely on 

is far too remote to be of any assistance. Therefore, 

I decline, on hehalf of t.he Tribunal, to allow you to 

proceed with that line of cross-examination. 

a 2. 
I 
e 
n 

& 

D 
u 
d 
a 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

MR. BROOKS; I see I will have to disclose 

further evidence to make my point clear. I state that 

behind that, even, there was a growing apprehens1'on 

which mayor may.not have been justified by the Japan­

ese and by Aslatic peoples ~fter a study of the econo-

)llic aggression of the various countries of the world 

over a period of years far before this which ~ay ,or 

may not have made th~m feel justified in taking cer- . 

tain defensive measures which they today state are 

defensive and wh1cnare and may 'be proven defensive 
.,. 

in regard to the . relations and acti~Tities of the 

various nations in regard to assisting and directing 

Chinese armies in the field during this period of time. 

21 Was the war started with Pearl Harbor, o.~ was it . 

22 started prior to '1931? 

23 THE PRESIDEJ}.lT: The mere economic develop ... 
~-.. -..... --

24 ments of other countr~es._9_o.u]d no~stifY the 

25 I Japanese resort to war. 
I 

.-~---~--.----.------.------.-- ._._----_ .. _-_ .... _._.'---'--'-- ----_ .. _-_._----_._ .. ---
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for the last sixty years is made to show that not only 

economip development is followed is carried on by 

various countries, but political aggression follows 

closely in thO footsteps and protective measures in 

various and sundry ways are fostered by certain power­

f~l commercial interests which have been the cause of 

most of our wars in the past. 

THE .PRESIDENT: Well, it is clear that you 
I 

wish to pursue ~n interminable inquiry going back 

sixty years, and for all We know, eighty years, going 

back perhaps to Japan-' s first contact with the outside 

14 world. We cannot allow that. This Court would never . 

15 conclud~ its duties, would never finish its work, if 

16 we allowed you to go that far back. That is too 

17 remote. 1:f we go back to first causes we may go ba,ck 

18 centuries. We have to take a reasonable view. We 

19 refuse to allow you to proceed with that line of cross-

20 examination. 

21 Ma. BROOKS: If the Court please, in Section l:[I 

22 of the I.ndictment th~re:1S a charge made of econontle 

23 aggression in China ahd Greater East. Asia. There 1~ 

24 no lilfl1t on ~hat period of time, as has been shown by 

25 the prosecution in their eV'~aence produced thus far • 

. -----~--~--.---------
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I 

1 I THE PRESIDENT: YoU are di~orcing that from 

21 its context.· Ec;:nomic aggression is not a crime. 

3 

4 

5 

We have given our decision. 

MR. BROOKS: In this instan~e, if the Court 

please, if. economic aggressiqn--

21493 

6 THE PRESIDENT: We refuse to hear you further 

7 on that. We have given our decision and our reasons 

8 for it and you are simply wasting time now in pursuing 

9 the matter. 

10 :MR. BROOKS: If I may, I would like to cross-

11 e~amine on another point. 

12 THE PRESIDENT: Permission to cross-examine 

13 on those points is refused. 

14 MR. BROOKS: I say on another point., if your 

15 Honor please. 

IG THE PRESIDENT: What is the other pOint? 

17 MR. BROOKS; May I ask the question and have 

18 your Honoi' find out if it is proper? 

19 BY MR. BROOKS (Continuingh 

20 Q Did your government, during t;tl1'S long period 

21 I of trouble,make any forma.l complaint in reference to 

221 any of the
' 
matters set out in your testimony to either 

~31 the League of Nations, to the Japanese Government,. or 

241 any other governments? 

251 ____ A __ I_w_as then only an official in the Particular 
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locality. Further, whether the central government 

foreign office had filed any official complaint with 

any of the governments or Laague of Nations, I cannot 

exactly tell. But there Was some formal protest made 

to the League of Nations after September 18, 1931. 

Q Did you, in your official capacity for this 

area, forward any material or reports as a basis for 

such complaints? 

Ii I bact reported to my central government 

ab'out the several provocative acts and aggressive acts 

11 on the part of Japan. But whether the central govern-

12 ment had reported same to the League of Nations, I 

13 I don't know. 

141 THE PRESIDENT, . We will recess now for 

15 1 fifteen minutes. 

16 i (Whereupon, at 1045, a recess was 

17\ taken until IIOt), aft ar which the proceedings 

l8! w~re resumed as follows:) i: 
19\ 
, i 

20 i 
i 

21 1 
I 
! 

22 I 
i 
! 
i 

23 i 

241 
25

1 
I 
I ____ ~_--
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~~----. ~.~ .... ~ ... ~--~ ~.-~ ~~---~~-~----~--'--
- .-~-.- ._"-_ .. --~.-- ----~---.- ----~-.---.-- -_.. Ii 

MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The T~ibunal is now 

resumed. 

THE PRESIDENT: Captain Brooks. 

Q On what dates were these reports that you 

have mentioned made? 

A I cannot recall the exact dates. Whenever < 

7 there is an incident occurred, the report was immedi-

8 ately made. 

9 Q Can you recall the year in which any such 

10 reports were made? 

11 A For instance, this Cha-Peh affair -- about 

12 the Cha-Peh Incident, a negotiati9n was made in .rune, 

13 1935; and following every negotiation, I made re-

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ports. And I was negotiating on the instructions 

sent to me by the Central Government, and I have made 

my report to t he Central Government on e very negotia­

tions I had. 

Q This affair in 1935 that you refer to, did 

that have any connection with the kidnapping of 

Chiang Kai-shek? 

A There 1s no r ela tion. 

Q I believe I recall that was in 1925, was it 

not? 

A Which case do you refer to? 

Q The kidnapping of Chiang Kai-shek. 

------------~--.-. 
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1 

2 i 

: I 
5 

A I think you have~ade a mistake of the year 

in which General Chiang Kai-shek was kidnapped. 

Q What was your official position at the time 

this report was made in 1935? 

A I was then the Deputy Commander of the 29th 

6 I Army and concurrently t~e Special Commissioner of 

7 

8 

Civilian Affairs in the Cha-Peh Provincial Govern­

ment. I Was then stationed in Chahar. 

9 Q To who and to what branch of the Central 

10 Government was such report directed? 

11 A I was obliged to make reports separately to 

12 several organs. As the Deputy Commander of the 29th 

13 .. Army I was obliged to make reports to the Ministry of 

14 Mili tary Affairs; and., as Speoial Commissioner of the 

15 Department of Civilian Affairs of the Chahar Provin-

16 cial Government, I was obliged to make reports to 
I 

\ _.< 17 the Executive Yuan. 

( I IS Q What was contained in this report that you 

19 made in 19357 Do you mmember the gist of the report? 

20 A I think you had better refer to the state-

21 ments I had already written in regard to the results 

22 of negotiations I had. 

23 Q Do you show in such statement the .contents 

24 of such report as you have testified to? 
2S THE MONITOR: Will the reporter please read 

---- ---------
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(Whereupon the last question was 

read by the official court reporter.) 

A Do I understand you that you want me to 

2,497 

:; make a complete report of the cables sent forth and 

6 back from the Centrel Government to me and from me 

7 to the Central Government, which is about two 

S inches high? 

9 Q I want a brief summary of the gist of the 

to 1935' report which you testified you sent after that 

11 incident. 

12 A The first major point in the report I made 

13 ':!n 1935', June, is like this: I reported that there 
14 

15 

16 

17 

1S 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

were two Japanese civilians and two Japanese military 

officers coming in from To-Lun by truck. They were 

then trying to force their entry into the North Gate 

of Chang-Peh district. At the gates they were 

stopped by the gate guard who asked them to prpduce 

their passports. They refused and quar.rel ensued. 
. 

THE PRESIDENT: Do you really think it will 

help us to have this story over again? After all, 

you have to convince us, you know. 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: I was asking of the reports 

with the purpose of ascertaining the dates they were 

made so that it might be obtained for defense 
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1 
material; if there was any discrepancy or apy other 

2 I matter that might explain \~pm, to see what action 

3 ! was taken' by the Chinese Government upon them, and 

4 

5 

if they were considered important at that time; and 

I believe it will be relevant in this case. 

6 THE PRESIDENT: I don't think it will help 

7 at all, Captain Brooks. I don't know what my col-

8 leagues think. I feel they agree with me. 

9 Do keep in mind that we really w.ant to hear 

10 the things that will help us to s eo the defense view-

11 point. But these small things won It., particularly 

12 as we have heafd them before ,and more than once. 

13 CAPTAIN BROOKS: If the Court please, what 

14 I am~ying to' show is the defense viewpoint on this 

15 thing that looks to me like it is being disallowed on 
16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

cross-examination. I think that, where he has made 

a statement here, although wha~he issay1ng in the 

report is repetitiOUS, we are getting that it was 

made in the report of June, 1935 by him as the 

Deputy Commander of the ~9th Army, and it was made 

to the Central Government, to ce~ta1n otfices, where 

it mj.ght be examined for further information; and we 

would like to put the truth before the Court. 

The truth in these matters should come out 

regardless of how it affects any party so that the 

I 
I 

I 
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Court has it before it. It is often elusive to find 

the truth, and it is often hard to get it believed 

and to get the viewpoint of a certain group or 

individual seen·. 

THE MONITOR: Would the reporter kindly 

read that last statement? 

(Whereupon the last paragraph was 

read by t~e official court reporter.) 

CAPTAIN BROOKS: A misunderstanding of the 

intentions of certain parties often would even to 

mitigation if only to mitigation alone, should 

be allowed to be brought to the Court for the purpose 

of showing mitigating circumstances as the basis for 

certain actions. I think that the pro~ution in 

this case has started this case with 1928 when the 

shooting started, but in any criminal case --

THE MONITOR: Would the reporter please 

read the last statement? 

(Whereupon, the last statement 

was read by the official court reporter.) 

THE PBESIDENT: I think we had better 

terminate this matter by the understanding that the 

Tribunal will give you every assistance to get that 

report if it will be released by the Chinese Govern­

ment, or to have a Commission, if necessary, in 
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1 I 
I! China if the matters in the report'are really of im~ I 
2 porterice to you. In the meantime, I think you had 

3 better cease cross-e~am1n;i.ng about that report. 

4 CAPTAIN BROOKS: I will cease cross-exam-

5 ining on that report. I was glad to find out that 

6 there was a report so that we could discover it. 

7 I Previous to this we did not know where it was or any-
81 thing about 1 t. 

I 
9 .Q Now, in 1937, at the time of the Mafco Polo 

10 Bridge Incident, what Was your official position at 
I 

11 that time? 

12 

I 
THE PRESIDENT, Ca~ta1n Brooks, I would ask 

13 your cooperation with the Court. You are asking 
\ 

14 things already obtained. 
15 CAPTAIN BROOKS: I want to find o'Ut: Did 

16 yO'U make a report in your official capacity as' such? 
17 THE PRESIDENT; Counsel owes a duty to the 

18 Tribunal. The position of American counsel tsno 

19 different from that of British counsel; they are 
20 officers of 'the Court, and they must help the Court 

21 and not impede ,it. 
22 Q Now, y~. Witness, do you know what claim 

23 China had to sovereignty over the t err! tory of Outer 
24 Mongolia and whether the orde~s-of the Central Govern-

, ' 

25 ment were obeyed by the officials there up to the 

(~J 
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1 year 19451 

2 THE PRESIDENT: Tha t has been put ana. 

3 answered. That is repetition. 

4 CAPTAIN BROOKS: I ~.S asked by associate 

5 counsel to ask that question. I hadn't heard it 

6 myself, your Honor. I think you are thinking about 

7 Manchuria. Vve were/ talking qbout Outer Mongolia. 

8 THE PRESIDENT: The question was put gener-

9 ally before on the control exercised by the Central 

10 Gov~rnment over the troops 1n the outside areas. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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w 1 Q General, where did you receive your training 
o 
1 2 asa staff officer? 
f 

& 

S 
P 
r 
a 
t 
t 

3 

4 

THE PRESIDENT: The answer cannot help us. 

~ffi. BROOKS: If the Court please, I wontt ask 

5 any fUrther on cros.s-examination. I would like, as a 

6 matter of information now to know if ~n our defense we 

7 will be limited in showing the conditions previous to 

8 when the shooting began, involving the question of who 

9 supplied the weapons; the arms, the munitions and 

10 materials -- with which war was 'engaged with these 

11 various rebels and band! ts -- were used to kill Japanese 

12 citizens and to violate their property rights. I be-

13 lieve it is very material. 

14 THE' PRESIDENT: We want to understand the de ... 

15 rense fully, but this line of cross-examination is not 

16 helping uS to understand t~ defense. 

MR. BROOKS: If the Court please, in a criminal 17 I 
I . I 

181case you are allowed to go back into the motive as to 
I 

19 who furnished the weapons, wpetheI" it was conspiracy 
20 . 

~nd what was said'before the sho6t1.ng actually t01)}i: 
21 ,place. This is a criminal case, and it i$ very im-
22 por tant to know what la.r ge commercial 1nteres t and 

23 what other interests --' black markets or undercover 
24 agents or otherwise --were furnishing arms of which 
25 Japan complained numerous times, not only to Ch1na, 
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I 

1 I but to other nations· of the world. It is possible 

2 that this is not the proper time, on cross-examination, 

3 to ask tha t type of question. I understand 1 have been 

4 refused to cross-examine along those l.ines • However, 

5 the question for a point of information was: Is the 

6 defense proper in going ahead and preparing this as 

7 Ie matt~r of defense evidence along that line, to show 

8 the relati0nship between Japan and China, and the 

9 damage that was caused to Japan by these conditions 

10 I'that prevailed, and powerful commercial interests in 

11 I their marketing various arms and supplies -- petroleum 

121 and war materials ... - that was' allowing this strife to 
I 

13\ continue over this long period of years -- fifteen 
i 

14 iyears before 1931. 
I 
! 

15 I THE PRESIDENT: Wel.l, put your questions, and 
I 
I 

161I will say whether they w1llbe allowed or disallowed. 

17iput yourquestion,and I will say whether it is allowed 
I 

18 lor not. 
i 

19 I Q Mr. Witness ,hasn I t there been a constant 
! 
I 

20 !growing or increase in tension andantipa~,. between 
I 

21 \the Chinese and Japanese since the year 1900, and a 
! 

22 !desire by the National Government or Central Government 
i 

23 jof China for the retrenchment of cer,tain territories I 
i ' i 

24 Iwhich it haS los t previously? I 

25\ TIm PRESIDENT: I suppose "retrenchment" means .1 
i __________________ ----------~-----------------~--------I 
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recovery. 

2 
MR. BROOKS: Recovery. 

3 THE PRESIDENT: I think it somewhat remote, 

4 but I will not prevent the witness from answering. 

5 A Ever since the Sino-Japanese War, it Was but 

6 evideat that the Chinese people as a whole were trying 

7 I their best to live up to the stl)lldards of a modern 

8 world. It was not the desire of the Chinese people --

9 Chinese Government -- to recover their lost territory 

10 right then, but it was the desire of the Chinese Govern-

11 ment to have the national strength consolidated, and 

12 put the nation on a modern basis. I said that the 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Chinese Government was real-izing its feeble strength, 

but was not prepared to recovery the lost territory. 

This can be proved by the fact that while the C~inese 

not as a whole resented the imp~sing by the Japanese 

of the twenty-one demands on China, the Chinese Govern­

ment has very, very reluctantly accepted it. Due to the 

fact that Japanese aggression knew no bounds, and the 

fact that the Chinese Government then was a very weak 

one, the Chinese people rose and put out this foreign 

expeditionary force, and had that Government thrown out. 

Q The weakness of the Chinese Government, tiough, 

was not the only reason why foreign nations found it 

25 1'1 l necessary to keep troops stationed in China·; is that trur? 

i I 1 _____ • __ . ____________ . ________ ._ .. ____________ . ___ ._._ .. ______ • ______________________ _ 
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1 
A Only Japan took that advantage of stationing 

2 ' troops there; othel:' nations didnft .• 
! 

3 .1 
Q Mr'. Wi tne,ss, aga result of, the Boxer Pr'obol:.., 

4 i other n~tions. had troop.s the~e, but eVen beside the, t 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

I 

reason and tbeaeti'Vlties of- bandits and rebels being 

prevalent 1n . China OVer ,·this long period of years, 

I weren,tthe're still o~per reasons why foreign nations , 
had. troops .sta,tioned1b China? If you know of them ,I 

, I 

wou14 like tohave~hem stated,; 

I 
I 
I 

i 

I 
i 

I 
• j 

10 

11 

. .TllEPRESIDINT:· YpU shoulds'Ugge$t the reaso~ '/ .. 

if yt>u lw.owthem ,antt-'.IictllnaYlj ,him gues.sing. Tl:tu; cross-· 

12. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

. ,r 
. ./ - . 

e~u~.mltla ti on. i$ t)lost un~l1l1ght-E1n"ng ~ 

·\\MR. Bl'{OOKS:,M~1 he answer that question, 1t· 

be , knOW$'l I, 

THE PRESIDENT:. ) Ido not exPect l}.lm to . answer 1 t 

-You suggest the r ea~on~, apd he Dlay or may not aqopt 

: them. That is the cQrrect way. 

Q!4t. Wtitnet~n~t wbuld it 'not be a reas'onable, 
19', ." . -. :,.' . .. .'. . 

- 'qlpprehensi<:l$l!, . ,that. Q'o.~ be entertained by the .1* aJl$se . '" 
20. . r~,sid~nt~ . a'S a . 'result of'numerous1nofdeEi __ ~, that 

./ 
21 

':22' 
anathe!' Boxer' -~p~i.s1ngnligb.t .l>e imminent? 

. THE; PRE:3l:0ENT : The ata te 0''1 China fr()Dl 1900 
.. . 

23, I on is no;_, l'el~'Vant, '.and ,is too.:emote. ·Vl'[)':'it we want to 

24.! disco1'eris tbestat~e. of China aso£' the times when 

251tbe~ Japanese took aotion, when thE! .Japane~e armed :f'orll's 

' .. ---' -'--. ~~-:-.- ----<_. __ ... _-_._' '--

/ 
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1 
,~egan to, operate. The conditions then are the things 

2 i tnat we want to know~ /' You cannot go b~ck tort)" years~. 

3 I. MR. BROOKS.: . In this case, the. s hoot lng 

4 J started in t 31, btl _ a large scale,' but since it'is a 
I 

5 ,criminal case- I bave consider,ed -- the dar,ensa ba s 

6 conSlder~d _ ... 'it relevarrt to, sh'C)W the cond itions giv ... 

. 7 ingr1se to themount1ng' blood pressures in the various 

8 rvountries ,-- of na tional,s ~- 'the;1r apprehensi<>ns and 

reat~, theirconflicting9:o'mmercialintere'sts, md t() 

S'hQwthat hostll1tie$, a1 tb,O\lghnot openly-,declared, 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23. 

24 

25 

'. . . . 

started ;long ~erbretbis,_p~"'lod as shown by-numerous 
. . . , .,.".. - . 

incidents ';"-se've~al ltund~e.d ._Ms; p·eentes t'lf'led to by the 

prosecutio~,t aownw1 tn.e$s here. 

THE PRESIDENT: . ]; would ,s~ggest to you, w1t).'l' 

all re,spect, Ihat~to sayanlthing that Inay appear 
. ,~ 

ofr-ensive t<? eoupsel, more part,1cularly to Amerlean , 
_ .J 

/ 

I counsel who' ar.e praetically~t:ranger$ t.ome, that you 

frame yourq)lestions more eare~ul;t~; and with a v~ewto 

assist1ng th~ C()vrt,keeping 'inmind that it is your duty 

,toass:Lst the Court. 

one. 

We-Will 'recess now until thirtl minuteS past 

(Whereupon, at 1200" Cl recess was ta~tl 

until 1330,. att,er w~ich the. 'proceedings were re­

g-Ulnad as foliow$ I) 
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---------------------- --~-"------------- -- -- ------------ -------- --, -------- -- --------~, 

AFTERNOON SESSION ,I 
The Tribunal met, pursugnt \\I'J recess, at 1338.1 

MARSHAL OIi'THE COURT: The International 

Military Tribunal for the Far' East is now resumed. 

CHI N G T E H - C HUN, called as a witness on 

behalf of the prosecution, resumed the stand and 

testified as follows: 

BY MR. BROOKS (Continuing): 

Mr. Witness, previous to 1937, did you, as 

a representative of China in that area e,ver request 

I 

I 
I 

1 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
! 

;::m a:::::~::a:f f::P:::s:~r::s:v:: ::l~::::S:o::OOPS' I 

area of responsibility and maintaining peac-e and order I 
therein? 

A I am-not quite ~lear about the question 

you ask. 

THE PRESIDENT: Witness, did you ever seek 

the assistance of the Japanese or other Chinese to 

maintain order in your particular district? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

Q Prior to 1937, Mr. VIi tness, do you know 

whether General ,Chiang Kai-shek or any other Chinese 

I 
I 
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......... --. . .... -....... ·--·----·---,1 
officials requested financial or any other type of 

assistance to restore peace and order in China and 

in your area or North China? 

A What do you mean? I don't quite under-

stand your question. Do vou mean the Generalissimo 

: 
i 
! ' 
i , 

I 
I 
i 
I 

and other generals requested my assistance or 

the assistance from Japanese side? 

requested! 
, I 

The latter. Wasn't Japanese national assis-

tance sought and wasn't Japanese troops requested 

to be ~iven as policing troops for your ~reas as 

well as other nations consulted by your officials 

on reports made from your areas and various other ' 

areas in order to restore peac~ and order to the 

whole of China? 

A (Interpreter): He is answering to the first 

of your question. He said: IlThere was no request made 

in regard to military troops but there was some dis­

sension about economic, collaboration. But, that is, 

economic collaboration was suggested by the Japanese 

side. 1I 

Q Did this economic collaboration that you 

speak of involve any dealings in war materials, arms, 

ammunition, to give assistance to any of the opposing 

factions in China on the part of an association of 

Japanese businessmen or any company or corporation of 
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Japan'? If so, please 'name them. 

A No. 

THE PRESIDENT: Captain Brooks, it must be 

obvious to you from the trouble the interpreters are 

getting that your questions are far too long, to say 

the least. 

MR. BROOKS: I will try to ask shorter ones, 

your Honor. I have made them fairly long so the 

complete idea would be expressed without a series ot 

. short questions that might not .,have any meaning to 

the Court. 

.Q Dur;tngthis period of trouble in China, in the 

. 'civil war previous to 1937, did China have outside 

resources for war materials, weapons and equipment? 

Do you know what they were? 

A I don't know anything about it. 

Q Was the arms and ammunition used by you 

and your 'armies and by the opposing factions that 

you we.t',e in conflict with previous to 1937 all of 

Chinese make or manufacture? 

THE PRESIDENT: What bearing on the issue 

has the origin of the Chinese war material? 

lffio BROOKS: I have heard, if your Honor 

please, I 'know, and we will show in evidence what the 

Japanese opinion has been of the cbnditions prevailing 
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1 prior to this outbreak of war and of the various 

2 commercial interests involved there. 

3 THE PRESIDENT: You have not answered my 

4 question. , I want to know what bearing on the issue 

5 the origin of the Chinese war mat~rial has. 

6 MR. BROOKS,~ !t 1s d1fficultwith this con-

7 stant interruption from the interpretation, but I 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

wanted to add further that I wanted to find from the, 

Chin.ese side, from a hostile, evident hostile witness 

in thi,s case to the defense, the interests that they 
, \ 

said, if there were any of thememhers of the Zaibatsu 

of Japan not represented by these accused who were ' 

responsible for the conflict of commercial interests; 

and it has a bearing in this case~ In Exhibit No. 199, 

prosecution paper 2340., in the discusSion which waS 

a current topic at that·time among' ASiatics, was 

whether European and American influences should be 

e~elled and a discussion of what would take place, 

whether they would be Japanese or otherwise. It has 

been shown recently that the Civil W~r in China has 

been prolonged by furnishing mat.erials. I think it 

will be shown that materials were furnished the Japan­

ese that made this war possible, that these various 

interests in conflict created a situation that was 

causing the loss of lives of Japanese residents and 
!. 

PURL: https://www.legal-tools.org/doc/083047/



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

(, 17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

2' 

CHING CROSS 

destruction of property of which Japan had through 

various negotiations in over three hundred in!>tances 

by diplomatic measures, even going to the League of 

Nations, and finally withdrawing because she was not 

given any assistance, was forced to take action. 

The defense feels that it has a responsibilit~ 

to pU,t forth these conditions and facts surrounding 

the charges, surrounding the conditions and actions 

taking place which might have infl'Uenced the defendants 

in making certain decisions and which will explain 

and cast, possibly, a different light on the acts 

taken by the various parties nnd tene to justify, 

mitigate or even shift the responsibility to others 

for What happened. 

THE PRES IDENT : We d on I t perm i t you to 

indulge in these gener!3.lities. Your question must 

be directed to specific' matters. No counsel ever 

attempts to do what you are trying to do. You are 

simply wasting time. Whenever I ask you for specific 

information, what your questions are directed to, 

what evidence }Tou have to back them up, you indulge 

in a general address. That is not permitted to any 

counsel. 

I\,ffi. BROOKS: ~he questions, if the Court 

please, that I am asking are not in relation to a 
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1 sp~cific thing. They are in relation to general 

3 

4 

5 

conditions which require' agetleralanswer to the 

Court's instruction as to what I am trying to show. 

1 will go to another point. 

THE PRESIDENT: Your attitude is so utterly 

6 unreasonable that it is difficult to control in the 

7 

8 

9 

10 I 
I 

·11 I 

I 
121 
13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

ordinary way. Counsel rarely puts a court,in that 

situation. 

]AR. BROOKS: If.I have offended the Court, 

I wish to apologize. It may be a difference in 

customs in presenting a case. In the cases that 

I have tried in American courts, the counsel is 

allowed uninterruptedly to present cross-examin~tion 

in defense as long-fis he thinks it is material and 

later will try to connect it up; and if it is not 
. \ 

material and not connected up, the Court at that 

time rules it out of order or strikes it for failure 

to tie it up. I wish to ~pologize. 
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Q Were there not, Mr. Witness, offieers,in 

1937"of the armies of bther nations attached "to these 

various Chinese units as observers, consultants, 

directors, and as active participants in the military 

action at that time and previous thereto? 

COLONEL MORROW: We object on the ground of 

relevancy and immateriality, if your Hc;>nor please. 

MR. BROOKS: If the Court please, I think it 

would be'very relevant to show what officers, how 

many, and what their activities were previous to this 

time. I am asking about 1937, 'previQus to 1937, ~nd 

also previous to 1941. There has been,also, much dis­

cussion in the papers and in vario'qs diplomatic 

addresses about forcing Japan to commit the first 

overt act, and I think the first overt act, as the 

prosecution has presented it, has been ,as of 1941 in 

some case-s against some nations, and 1931 in others, 

and I think this l-ine of questioning may bring out 

certain other conditions that may very well be regarded 

as an overt act which led to an a~gressive policy, 

against which Japan was finally forced to take 

defensive action. 

THE PRESIDENT: The question is disallowed. 

Q In your discussion with Mr. MA~SUI, set out 

on page 4 of exhibit 199, when you discussed the 
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l--r-------------------~--------------------------------; 

1 i . European and American influences that should be 

2 expelled and the Japanese attitude, was there any 

3 discussion as to the hold on Asia's markets and 

4 resources having anything to do with the Japanese 

., attitude and ex"Pression'JAsia for the Asiatics?n If 

6 so, state what it was. 

7 I am going to reframe the question, if you 

8 please. I can make that shorter. 

9 THE PRESIDENT: The Court will now recess 

10 in order to consider their position. 

11 (Whereupon, at 1410, areces! was 

12 taken until 1430, after which the proceedings 

13 were resumed as: follows:) 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

2, 
24 
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D 1 
DEPUTY MARSHAL OF'THE COURT: The Tribunal is 

~ 2 I now reS\Ulled. " 
a. 3' THE am;SIlENT: The Tribunal has decided that in 
&: 

4 
W 
h 5 
a 
1 6 

e, 7 
n 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the future all cross-examination shall be limited to 

matters arising in the examination in chief. 

Am.. BROOKS: If the Court please, I wou1d only 

like to make one observation and that is on exhibit 199. 

There was a discussion by MATSUI referred to as to Asia 
I 

should be the Asia of the Asiatics, and that European 

and American influences should be expelled. And my 

line of questioning has been in line with the witness' 

own affidavit in wh1Qh a. discussion was made of these 

vital factors of which Japan had complained, and which 

are 'the ba$es and the features of this world holocaust 

that should be pointed out and condemned by this Tri. 

bunal. . 

TEE PRESIDENT: Is that the end of the o1'oss­

examination? 

Iv1R. 1mOOKS: No further cross .... examination of 

this witness. 

COLONEL MORROW: If your Honor please, we have 

no direct examination. 

THE PRESIDENTs There 1s only one question I 
I ' I should ask of the witness. 

. Have you any reason to doubt the genuineness 
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1 of the TJiNAKA Memorial? 

2 
J 

3 

4 " 

MR. FURNESS, Doesthat--

THE PRESIDENT: Now, let the witness answer. 

THE WITNESS: IC,annot pro.ve that 11; is a true 
, , 

5 / one,' but at the same time I also have no means to dis .. 

6 prove it. But as the development We have witnessed in 
" 

- 7 ' the latter sta'ges, of Japanese aggression it ~eelYlS to me .. 
8 that the author TANAKA had made himself a very good 

9 profit. 

'tHE MON!TOR: English supplements: If TANAKA --< " 

11 ,Memorial wasun'tru~ ,wasc~okedt;l.p, everything predioted 

12 in 'it has bee,n o.arr;1.ed ou~ •. 
13 

14 
THE PRESIDE,NT: Major Furness. 

, MR. 'FUR.NESS: My objeetion, sir, was to the 

15. question put by the Pre,sid'ent, that1t assumed that there 
" 

16 
had been any proof that suche. memorial existed. As far, 

17 
this case has gone I think there has been no such ,as 

" 

18 
proof • 

. 19 • ··-THE PRESIDENT: The question is put in the 

20 'interests of thedef'eI1se. 
21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. FURNESS:' 'Thank you sir. , 
CAPTAIN KLEIMAN; May, it please the Tribuna,l, 

1n the interest oftha defense, may I ask this witness 

, just one' question concerning the TANAKA Memorial? 

THE PRESIDENT: No. We we~etold- there was nQ 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
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further cross-examination. 

CAPTAIN KLEIMAN: All right, your Honor. 
THE PRESIDENT: We will keep to that. 

Now, there is another questio. that 1.-

Wh~eh of the two HASHIMOTOS, if either, is the 

accused? The witness referred to two in his exam-

ination in chief, ~ 
THE WITNESS: Neither of them, of the 

_HASHllIOTOS I m~ntioned in the written statement, can 

be identified with the HASHIMOTO accused 1n this case. 

MR. BROOKS: Your Honor, I was going to 

point out he previously testified that neither of them 
them were this man. 

THE PRESIDENT: Is there any further re-

examination? 

Mr. Smith. 
MR. SMITH: Your Honor,- evidently the Court 

17 came back unexpectedly and mes t of the Japanese 

18 counsel were out of the room when youmaae the 

19 ruling. Could,we have the re~orter read that back 

20 for their benefit? 

21 

22 

23 

.24 

25 

THE PRESIDENT: Counsel who Were in the room 

are quite capable of advising those who were not. 

COLONEL MORROVf:"I understapd this witness 

may be dismissed, if the Court pleas€? 

THE PBESIDENT: The witness may go. 
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DEPUTY MARSHAL OF THE COURT: The witness Will-' 

sign this oath: "I swear that the testimony I have given 

is a true statement." 

(Whereupon, a document was signed by 

the Witness.) 

THE PRESIDENT: The Representative of China 

advises me that that is the Chinese form. 

(VVhereupon, the witness was excused.) 

COLO'NEL MORROW: If the Court please, pursuant 

to a permission of this Court to take certaj.n witnesses 

out of turn from the Republic of China, I desire to 
11 

12 
present for tne ptITpose, Mr. David Nelson Sutton'of 

West Point, Vir ginia, a nwmber of the bar of the Su­
B 

PI' erne Court of Appeals of Virginia and of the bar of 
14 

15 the Supreme Court of the United States, a member of the 

16 prosecution staff, who will present certain witnesses 

17 from China out of order, with the permission of this 

18 Court. 

19 THE PRESIDENT; For the information of other 

20 Members of the Tribunal you might explain what you mean 

21 by out of order. 

22 MR. SUTTON: May it please the Tribunal, the 

23 witnesses are presented without at this time presenting 

24 certain documents which would normally have been pre-

25 sented. The witnessos are presented one after the other. 

The evidence will be connected up later. -----------------

PURL: https://www.legal-tools.org/doc/083047/



, 
( 

2,519 

1 THE PRESIDENT: I understand these witnesses 
I 

2 i will deal with matters which ordinarily would have been 

3 presented at later stages, but I had no idea you were 

4 going to dispense with documents. 

5 MR. SUTTON: We are not presenting any docu-

6 ments except the affidavits of the witnesses. 

7 THE PRESID21~: That microphone is in a bad 

8 position. We have the greatest difficulty hearing . 

9 counsel at that lectern. 

10 1ffi. SUTTON: The statement which I made was 

11 that we are not at this time presenting any documents 

12 except the statement of the witness. 

13 THE PRESIDElff: Well, proceed. 

14 1ffi. FURNESS: If the Court please, my recollec-

15 tion of the Court's order was that because certain wit-

16 nesses were here in Japan and wanted to return to China, 

17 that the testimony of those witnesses could be put on 

18 out of order. That is, they could interrupt the phase 

19 on which they were offering proof and put in the evidence 

20 of other witnesses who might not be available here in 

21 . Japan. 

22 I My recollection further is that the names of 

23 'those three witnesses were General Ching, who has just 

24 !testified, and Mr. Dorrance, and Mr. Fitch, and that 
I 

25 i . those are the only three witnesses to whom that order 
i 
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1. applied. 

Am. SUTTON: May it please the Court, these 

3 witnesses whom we are offering a.t this time have been 

'I here in response to summons issued by this Court since 

) the 12th of June. One, the next witnes~was brought 

h from the United States of America, the rest from the 

7 Republic of China. Their own circumstances are such 

8: that they cannot remain longer without great embar-

. ----- i 

9' rassment. They testify with rega-rd to certain phases of 

10. the war in China as to which the Court has been hearing 

11: testimony for the last several days. 

12 ; ~m. FURNESS: The Court has been hearing the 

13· testimony of one witness to whom the order of the Court 

14 I applied. I say with that reservation that the testimony 

15: of the witnesses of Whom Mr. Sutton now speaks was not 

16' the subject of the Court's order. It applied to two 

17: other witnesses. We -are not prepared on these witnesses 

18 which he plans to call now. 

19 MR. SUTTON: Not only were the statements··o' 

20 these witnesses distributed to defense counsel, but the 

21. defense counsel Were given the names of the particular 

22 witnesses who Will be next called, these names having 

23 . been furnished to them the first of this week at the 

24 time General Ching was called. 

25 . THE PRESIDENT: The defense will not be taken 

, . 
i 
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)-- .-~ ... --.--- .. -.-------- --- - ._- ._---- .-- -._---- --.- -- . 

1 I by surprise, Major Furness. 

---. -.-------.-, --1 
! 
i 

2 j 
! 

MR 0 FUR NESS: I do object to his statement 

3 1 that these witnesses are being put on pursuant to a 

4' Court order. They are not. And I wish the prosecution 

5 would admit that. 

6 I think Colonel Warren wants to say something. 

7 MR. WARREN: Let the record show it is Mr,. War-

8 rene 

9 If the Tribunal please, in a sense, yes, we are 

I 
I 

10 caught unprepared.. The mere presentat:i.onof an affidavit! 

lIto us has no indication as to when that Witness will be 

12 called. Your Honor realizes, and as I know all the 

13 Members of the Tribunal do realize, that because of the 

14 exigencies of time that has existed throughout, we have 

15 had to prepare our case as the case progressed. I 

16 O:ndinarily there would be no objection to tak-

17 ing a wit~ess out of turn if we were notified in time 

18 so that we may proceed ahead of ourselves in~preparlng 

19 that particular phase of the case. We cannot understand 

20 how any witness can be embarrassed by being requireq to 

21 wait a few days on one of the highest tribunals that 

22 the world has ever known. It seems strange to us that 

2~ the prosecution did not inform this Tribunal at the time 

24 I that they ,asked for the other wi~nesses to be taken out 

25 of turn in order that the defense could be prepared. 
I 

.--.--__ ~I 

PURL: https://www.legal-tools.org/doc/083047/



2,522 

1 We can take no other view excQpt that they are trying 
,. 

2 to take advantage of a situation. That 150m:." unalter-

3 able view, sir. 

4 THE PRESIDE11T: The only question is whether 
. 0 

5 you are prepared to cross-examine. You have not stresse1 

6 the fact that you are not. \ 

7 

8 

9 

MR. WARREN: Sir, we ar e not. 

THE PRESIDENT: Dr. KIYOSE. 

DR. KIYOSE: May lspea1\: a few words on behalf 

10 I of the Japanese counsel? 

11 Actually speaking, this Tribunal is now ~der­

taking a review of the Manchurian phase of the question. 

However, as Major Furness has already pointed out, three 

witnesses have been\ called from China, one of whom is 

an important official, and others have very important 

business waiting fo~ them in China to the extent that 

the Tribunal has said that a master commiSsioner would 

be asked _ ... to the extent that prosecution askedfol' 

. a master commissioner. To this request the Court, in­

st.ead of no~inating a master comI\llss1oner, has made a 

ruling of reviewing the case, actually, at this time 

here and it is according to that that the pr.esent trial 

23 . is now in progress. 

24 One of these three witnosses, namely General 

25 Ching Teh-chun, has already been cross-examined. 
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Following that we have been expecting Mr. Fitch and 

Mr. Dorrance to appear on the witness stand arid have 

bo~n prepar.ing for them ever since this morning, We 

would like to know, Mr. President, what shall we do 

about taking evidence from ~essrs. Fitch and Dorrance? 

One other point which I wish to present t~ the 

Court is that one of the caUses for the confusion here 

is that witnesses are introduced out of ardor. If 

witneSs'os are to be examined with respect to th~ China 

Incident, thon if an. opening statement on the China. 

Incident would be presented by the proseou'Gion at the 

outset, thon it would very greatly clarify tbeposition 

and attitude of the prosGcution and enabling us, the 

members of the defense counsel, to prepare and carryon 

our case. 
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1 ' rneorm.e~t1on:witllthe· China Ipcldent, ~e 
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I 3 I 

I 4 I 
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charge,S rnadeare with respect t.O military aggression, 

eC9ll;otnie aggression,t.o the useo! narcotics, and 

,othe~hatmfuldr~s as w~ll as atra,cities. ' Unless 
" , . 

s.Ome clarifio-ation 'is made bythep,roseout1on on: how 

'6 
I 

& ther are gOing-, to handle these charg~s Qndprodue$ 

B\ ' 
a 
r 
t 
o 
n 

7 

8 
\ 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

,14, 
! , 

15 

16 

, 17 

I 
.' . 

their w1tn~,sseso'tlt otordet", 1 t !Juts 'U.s--,into a vQry 

:d1tfleult position and ¢~ea.tescdnfuslon in this COlll't. 

As the 'hOnorable ~r. Presid,~nt has already 

a:~ated,""~'a$l$~d' ,of us, ,,~ a~e .,1tlde~Qmost anxtoU$ 

to co¢petijt~ .,wlthth\j!lr,tbu.njl.Fromthe standpoint '". ," .J:' .' . I, ,_C',..,""'_ J:' ". . ,"" . . J 

of our own :l!~:spotls;l;1tl1t~a;n ~h~ihandlin~_ of tljte:, 

;ca$esOnb~d, w~sn~:(!llt~~to a$k tbe Tr;U)~al to 

\ ,estaPl1snafixed W$,t~,t!v1li ,~de:r' th.atthe proceed"!" 

1n~$' of this, Court m:qtPtog~ess smoothly. ~tls re-
"'. - \ 

, g~et£u.l.:thatsince 1Qstel;'qay (the pl"oceeding'shate 

J ..lltOt be~ngoing c;>n smoot,,hly .• 
\ ' 

, 18 j 
Japq.\~ee~$e,l 110speotMly 'aslcS theTr~-

. 19',:, --
l:n;JnaJ;.' ,f!) make .. ·~ .. appropriate rmlng ino1'derto. aSS1.ll'e 

.20" 

2.1 

22 

23 

74 

25 

. 1'~g;POll~!fbl~11.ty<,t$'OlSpwl t,h respec_t ...... alsos.hquld 

The ca.Se is divided into 

j 

I 
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1 modify its order. Instead of having this evidence 

2 taken by Commission, the Court has decided to take it 

3 itself. Nothing more than that has happened. There 

4 has been no confUsion, and there will be none on that 

5 account. The real.question is whether the defense 

6 -are in position to examine the witnesses that will 

7 now 00 called, and it appears they have had ample 

8 notice. 

9 Is this witnesS' from the United states a 

10 long witn0ss? 

11 MR. SUTTON: He is, Sir, on direct e~~fin-

12 ation, a ve,ry short witness. His statement is con-

n tained on three pages. 

14 THE PRESIDENT: - We will hear his evidence 

15 in chief this afternoon, and, if necessary, we will 

16 postpone his cross-examination until tomorrow. That 

17 ought to meet the position of the defense. 

18 MR. WARREN: If the Tribunal please, I 

19 would like to correct one impression -- I think 

'20 wrong impression -- the Tribunal has-. We were not 

21 

22 

25 

notified that they intended to call these witnesses. 

They serve us with affidavits, and maybe it would be . 
week~ --.I mean a document,a'nd maybe it would be 

weeks before they c orne up in Court., So much for 

that phase •. 
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17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

We should not have objected had we been 

told~ However, we are in Court without these 

affidavits, and we are forced at this time to ask 

the Tribunal to give us a ten minute recess to go 

pick up.these statements from our office. 

2,5'26 

MR. SUTTON: May it please the Tribunal, I 

called the administrative office of defense counsel 

myself on Tuesday afternoon, talked to Commander 

Harris, and told himnt that tImo, pursuant to a 

request made by Mr. Logan of defense counsel to Mr. 

Carlisle Higgins, Acting Chief of Counsel for the 

pros.ecut10n, on t~e morning of that day -- tQld 

Commander Harris that the witness whom the prosecu­

tion would offer, following the testimony of Geperal 

Ching, was Dr. Robert O. Wilson. I gave him the 

documont number of Dr. Wilson's affidavit and also 

told him the name of the other witnesses who would be 

offered following Dr. Wilson. 

THE PRESIDENT: The defense cannot be 

prajudiced if the examination in chief 1s taken this 

afternoon. We will take the examination in chief 

this a.fternoon. 

MR. WARREN: There is no controversy on 

that, sir. We just want a ten minute recess to run 

and get our documents. May we have that, sir? 

---- -- -- ----------------._--

I 
I 

I 

I 
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WILSON 

1 THE PrtESIDENT: Yes, proceed. Call the 

wi tness. 

- --
4 ROB E R T O. W I L SON, called as a witness 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

on behalf of the prosecution, being first duly 

sworn, testified as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY 'MR. SUTTON: 

Q irre you Dr. Robert O. Wilson of Arcadia, 

10 California? 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A 

Q 

No. 2246 

to that. 

A This is my affidavit; and I signed it. 

MR. SUTTON: We ask that this be filed as 

an exhibit. 

CLERK OF WEE COURT: Prosecution's document 

2246 is given exhibit No •. 204. 

(Whereupon, the document above 

referred to Was marked prosecution's ex- .. 

hibit No. 204 for identification.) 

MR. LEVIN: Mr. PreSident, 'W'O would like 

to object to the use of this affidavit 3,san exhibit 

in this case or as the testimony of this witness. 
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WILSON DIRECT 

We believe that none of the rEfas,ons assigned by the 

Court for permittihg the use of affidavits in this 

case are applicable to this witnesS., The witness is 
. .' 

n graduate of Princeton and Harva~d Universities and 

a well educated man and speaks English as well as' 

anyone in this courtroom. 

When the Court announced -- when the 

President announced the decision of the Court to 

9 permit affidavits, it stated that it did so with 

10 grave misgivings. ~We. have no -situation with this 

11 wi tn~ss thetis. applicable to any of the other wi t-

12 nesses who have appeared -- that is, those who spoke 

13. eithe.!' Chinese or Japanese. Under these circumstances 

14 we believe that the witness should be directed that 

15 the testimony of the witness should be offered by 

16 question and answer. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE PRESIDENT: There is no need for you 

to say any more. We will hear what you have to say, 

Mr. Sutton. .We see no reason why this manls evidence 

in chief should not be taken in the ordinary way. 

There is nothing we can think of to justify this 

departure except the mere fact that you have pre­

pared an affidavit •. 

·You. can treat that as the proof of his 

evidence and examine him from i t~ .. Theobjection· is 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

WILSON DIRECT 

--- ---------------------------------------------

sustained. 

MR. SUTTON: We had understood, may it 

please the Tribunal, that we should in each case 

offer the affidavit of the witness in order to 

shorten the proceedings and then offer the witness 

for cross-examination. 

THE PRESIDENT: It vms offered in evidence, 

8 there was no objection, and the Court couldn't re-

9 ject it. But it is desirable that the witness 

10 

11 

12 

should now be examined in chief as though his ~tfi· 

daVit was a ~e~e p~oof of his evidence. 

~m. LEVIN: Mr. President, my objection to 

13 the affidavit -- I offered it. as an objection to the 

14 - affidavit. I assuned that that was the proper time 

15 to make the objection, when it was offered in evi-

16 dence. 

17 

18 

19 

THE PRESIDENT: It was already in evidence 

and marked when you objected, but we may be pre­

pared to sustain the objection and reject the affi-

20 davit. VIe can always do that. 

2] 1m. LEVIN: If the Court please, my object-

22 ion was based according to practice to which I am 

23 

241 
accustomod. In our practice, when the exhibit is 

offered it is not considered in evidence. At the 
I 

25 I time it was offered I thought I made my 

1 ______ -----------------------------------------

proper 

I 
I 

PURL: https://www.legal-tools.org/doc/083047/



1 

2 

3 

4 

2,530 

WILSON DIRECT 

objection to it. I now 6bjebt to it. I thought I 

had objected to it, ahd task that the Court sustain 

our objection to the ~se of this affidavit. 

THE PRE S !1JENT : We can treat your objection 

5 as made ~ pro tunc and uphold it. We will reject 

6 the affidavit. 

7 The Page hnd better collect the affidavits 

8 from the judges. 

9 1ffi. SUTTON: Shall I proce~d with the 

10 examination, if the Tribunal please? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE PRESIDENT: Yes. 

BY MR. SUTTON (Continued): 

1906. 

Q Dr. Wilson, when and where were you born? 

A I was born in Nanking, China, October. 5,· 

Q What is your profession, and where did you 

receive your education? 

A I am a surgeon. I received my education at 

Princeton University and Harvard Medical School. 

Q Following your graduation in medicine, did 

you return to China, and, if so, during what period 

did you practice medicine in the Republic of China? 

A I returned to China in January,_ 1936 and 

practiced medicine at the University Hospital in 

Nenking, China from that time until August of 1940 • 

. __ ._-----------._----------
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'Q Were you connected with the University 

Hosp'1t~u in Nanking, and, if so, in what capacity? 

A I was an Associate in Surgery at the' Uni-

4 versity Hospital in Nankihg. 

5 Q DiQ the Chinese doctors and nurses on the 
~ . 

6 Staff of the hospital leave the hospital in the 

7 Fall of 1937 and, if so, when? 

8 MR. McM1~NUS: if your Honor please, for the 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

redord, I object' to that question .... to the form of 

the question, and also on the grounds it is very 

leading, and request that the President shall in­

dtr·Uct the counsel to Conduct his examination not by 

astting leading questions and asking them in the proper 

toi-m. 

THE PRESIDENT: These are merely introduct­

ory matters upon which he may well be permitted to 

lead. "". 
A Late in November, 1937, after the tall Of\\ 

' Shanghai, when the J?-panese Army was approaching 

Nanking, the nurses and doctors of our staff came to '\ 

us with. the request- that they be allowed to proceed II 

up-river and not rernain in N£\nking when the c-ity 

was~ taken by the Japanese soldiers.· Their reason for 
,,~, .. "" .,-~ ",,- ,. "" 

doing this was becauso of the stories that they heard 

about the happenings in the cities between Shanghai 

,I 
\i 
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1 

2 

I 
! 

and Nanking. These cities wore specifically SU-Chou, 

WU-Hs1, Chen-Kiang,Tang-Yang, among others. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Our staff feared for their lives and W)shed \ 

8 

to leavo, and we attempted to calm. their fears by 

saying that under I:'lartial law they would have nothing 

to fear in Nanking after the city fell. We were 

Ufiable tQ annvince them, however, and they left to 

u~ .. ;river, leaving the hospital with Dr. Trimmer, 

9 another American doctor, and myself, five nurses who 

10 elected' to remain behind, and some of the servant 

11 class who ele~ted to stay with us. They lett the 

12 city about the first of December. All together, 

13 about twenty Chinese doctors and some forty or fifty:' ., 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

nurses and student nurses left. J 
Q To what number had the patients in the hos­

pital been reduoed immediately prior to the fall of 

the city ot Nanking? 

A When our staff loft we were far ced to r e­

duce the number of patients to the irreducible limit 

and sent home all who could pos.sibly go home, leaving 

ti);~ .. ,."~~.~~ty_~~ents in the hosp! tal who either.: had 

no place to go or were too sick to move. 

, I 
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--------_._---- -_._- ---._-_.-._._ .. - _._------_._-----_._ .. --_._-_._---------_._---_._---

W 1 Q . Did the situation change following December 13, 
0, I 
1 
f 2 I 

3 

1937; and if so, in what manner? 

A The Japanese soldiers entered the city on the 
&: 

S 
p 
r 

4 

5 

a '6 
t 
t 7 

~ 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

morning of the 13th of December, all resistance having 

ceased on the night of the 12th. Within a very days 

the hospital filled up rapidly with manY,many cases 

of injury to men, women and children of all ages, and 

of all degrees. 

MR. BROOKS: If the Court please, I think 

it is objectionable. I think the Court--

THE PRESIDENT: I cannot hear you. Talk 

~ough the microphone. 

1m. BROOKS: If the Court please, I think this 

line of questioning is objectionable, and I think it 

is made for the possibility of influencing the Mombers 

of the Court and that the Court can very well take 

judicial notice, and I think the defense would be 

willing to agree that in any war there will be casualties 

among civilians women, children and others-- otherwise 

if such purpose is not shown, I move it should be stricke 

from the record. 

TH~ PRESIDENT: The objection is overruled. 

Proceed, 

MR. BROOKS: I would like to enter a further 

objeotion, on the ground of immateriality and irrel-
--_._--------------_._------------- ----- ---
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1 evancy to the issue they are trying to $how -- who caused 

2 I the war. If this had anything to do with it, I don't 

3 see where it is material. 

4 

5 

THE PRESIDENT: The objection is overruled. 

Q Doctor, will you give specific instances of 

6 ,the types of injuries which had been received by the 

7 [persons whom you treated at the hospital? 

8 I A I can say the few instances of patients that 

9 I treated during the time immediately following the fall 
10 of Nanking, but I will not be able to give their names, 
11 

except in the case of two, who are here as witnesses. 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

One case that comes to my mind is that of a 

woman of forty, who was brought to the hospital with 

the back of her neck having a laeeration severing all 

the muscles of the neck, and leaving the head very 

precariously balanced. From direct questioning. of the 
17 

Ipatient, and from those who brought her in, there was 
18 I 

Ii

no --19 
I MR. MATTICE,: I would like to interrupt this 

20 I 
I
Witness to object; first, for'-tbe reason that,obvious-

21 I 

11y, what the witness is about to say is heresay; 
22 I 

isecondly, it is not in response to the question which. 
23 i 

!was asked him. 
24 ! 

I,WhiCh he saw and 
25 I 

Iwoman told him. 

He was asked to describe the wounds 

he now undertakes to tell what the 
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THE Pl\ESIDENT: The objection 1s overruled. I 
The objection to he~esay has been overruled repeated- I 
1y. 

A (Continuing) Upon direct question~ng'of the 
-."". . .••.• !" •• 

wonan, and f rom the story of those who brought her ,in, 

there was no doubt in our minds that the work was 

that of a Japanese soldier. 

THE PRESIDENT: ,He ought to say what the 

woman told him. 

A (Continuing) A young boy of eight was 

brought in with a deep penetrating wound of the 

abdomen, which pierced his stomach. 

MR. WARREN: If your Honor please, I was 

about to object on the same grounds that your Honor 

called to the attent1onof the witness; that he 

should state what the patient is alleged to have told 

hiJ.l, instead of his conclusio'ns, and let the Court 

draw the conclus;on. We respectfully request the 

Tri bunal to requ.';$'& tl:;le witness to state, as near as 
i 

I 
I 

. I 

1w1'eClalls" thecoI\VE>l'sat1ons Iw had with these patients! 

, THE PRESIDENr; The objection$ are sustained. I 

I 

(Addressing Mr .. sutton) I do not think yott 

are hearing me. You will not hear me unless you wear 

'those headphones. 

I said the witness must state what con-
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-- -------------------------
I versations he had with those wounded people. 

A (Continui~g) A man was admitted with a 

wound through the right shoulder, obviously a bullet 

wound, and .. -

~ THE WITNESS: If the Court pleases, I 

6 can tell his story as he told it to me then. Is 

71 
1 

81 
I 

91 
I 

10 

11 

that what I understand? --

A (Continuing) He was one -- the only survivor 

of a large group of men who were taken to the river 

bank of the Yangtze River and individually shot. The 

bodies were pushed into the river, and hence the 

12 actual number cannot be ascertained. But he feigned 

13 death, crept away in the darkness, and came to the 

14 hospital. This mants name was Liang. 

15 Another man was a Chinese policeman and was 

16 brought to the hospital with a very deep laceration 

17 across the middle of his back. He was the only sur-

18 vivor of a large group taken outside the city wall, 

19 who were also first machine-gunned and the wounded 

20 were then pierced with bayonets to be sure that they 

21 were dead. That manls name, was Wu Chang-teh. 
I 
I 

22 i 
i 

One noon I was having lunch in my house, v/hen I 
23 ! . I 

I 

241 
the neighbors rushed in and told us, at the table, that' 

'I some Japanese soldiers were raping the women in their 

2, I 

i _______ l_ffi--..:. _WARR~_~ _____ .~~ ___ ~?ur Ho~~~ __ please, that 
-~---.....; 

house. 

I 
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1 obviously is not an answer to the question that was 

and we request that he be 

3 required to answer the question and undoubtedly the 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

·19 

20 

21 

prosecution will bring those out in further question~ng. 

THE PRESIDENT: He should confine his answers 

to the questions, but I do. not think he infringed 

very serious.ly. These ar$ all related matters. The. 

objection 1s overruled. -", 

A (Contihuing) We rushed out of the house to aceornj 

pany tbe m~n. baek to their own house, and the people 

1n the e our tyard pointed to the closed doo.r of the 

gate-house. 'three Japanese soldiers stoo,d about in the 

eourt1~rd wi tb their bayonets. We p,?-shed in the 

door of the gate-.h-ous$, arid found two Japanese soldiers' 

in the, a.ct of l'aping two Chinese WOmen. We took the 

women to the University of Nanking Refugee ... - .the C'alt1pus 

where there 'Was a. large group of' refugees, under the 

supervision ot the International Refugee Committee. 

A man es:me into the hospital with a bullet 

tbroughhis jaw, barely able to talk. About two ... 

thirds of his body was very badly burned •. His story, 

at! l'!early as we QQuld make it out, was that he had been 

se.iz~db1 Japanese Soldiers, shot, covered wi ttl gaso-
24 I . line, and. set afire. He died two days la.ter. 
25 

Another man was admitted with a very severe 

PURL: https://www.legal-tools.org/doc/083047/



l 
i 

2,538 
WILSON DIRECT 

1 
burn covering his ,entire head and shoulders. While 

2 I still able to talk, he told us that he was the only 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

surviTor of a large group who had been bound together, 

had gas~line spi-ayed OVer them, and were set afire. 

We have pictures of these particular cases, 

th$t I have mentioned so far. 

An old man of sixty was admitted with a 

8 bayonet wound 1n h1$ chest. His story was that he had 

9 gone from the refugee zone back into the other part of 

10 tbe c1 ty to look for a. relative. He met a Japanese 

11 soldier who bayoneted him in the ches t and tb!-ew him in 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the gutter for dead. He recovered six hours later -~ 

he recovered consciousness six hours 'later and was able 

to get to the bosp~tal. 

Cases like this co~nued to come in for a 

matter of some six or seven weeks following the fall 
~~"""",~,_-,!""." ....... 't .• ,_"~ ..... "", .. ....,;.,,,,_>~~.,,," .... ~:r----""'';l':<''V~'''--_f~'''''''/, ..... ,-..., ...... ~.,~ __ ,....._~,' qo.".'" '" ..,..,. ••.. ~-".., •• _r"_'.' ".' ,-", ... ,.,. ' '''''" ... _<.-t .... ~ 

of tbe city on December 13,1'93.7. The capacity of the 

hospital was normally one hundred and eighty beds, 
, 

and this was kept full to overflowing dUJ;'ing this el\tire 

period. ' 

Q ,Doctor, were any children brought 1n with 

woundS during this period? 

A I mentioned/the eigbt year old boy. There are 
... 

, two other cases that come to my mind: 

One was that of a little girl of seven or 

---------------
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------_._-----------

eight, who had a very serious wound of the elbow, with 

the elbow joint exposed. Her story to me was that 

I Japanese soldiers had killed her rather and mother in 

I front of her· eyes, and given her this wound. 

IA girl of fifteen was brought. into the hospital by 

the Reverend John Magee, wit~ the 4ttorythat she had 

been raped. A medical examinatio~ confirmed this. 

About two months later this girl came again into the 

hespital with a secondary rash of syphilis. 

Q Did these patients report to you from whom 

they had received the wounds? 
. ; ) • ~ i. : ; 1. 

A They mere+y stated that t~y reeeivsd the 

wounds at the hands'-- without e~cti!ptloh tHet ~e~btted 
, . ( 

I that the wounds wete rece:Lved at the hands of Japanese 

soidier~. 

Q Dt)ctd~, are these two patients,-- Capta1,n 

lLia~~ a~d wu ... c~~~:.~eh -- in Tokyo? 

I "'"'-" A. The man you-'~efer to as Captain Liang -- at the 
~--.~'--'-~~ ...... ~,., 

19 time I knew him, he was a stretcher-bearer in the Chinese 

20 Army. He is here in ~okyo, and Wu-Chang-teh, the police-
." •.• " ...... 1,," __ .. '" .• 

('~ ," -

21 man also mentioned previously, also is in Tokyo • 

. 22 \. THE PRE~IDENT: Colonel Morrow, apparently he 
23 bas not heard the witness finish. his ap.swer. 
24 

. - Q ' Doctor, was there anY' change in the matter or 
25 I' . 

I the_ sale of opium in the Oi ~_~f~:ank1ng _~Ol~OW1mg the 

---
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l-------------------------------__________________ ~--~ 
I 

1 I'~~s,~a;~ion df:<,"t;ha;tr Jtt1.,y f1Y the Japanese in Pecember, ' 
. "' '. ' . . ,.-

2 193'71 

3 ,MR. WARREN,: 

\ 

If the Tribunal please, patently 
.i i: 
.: i 

4 that d'oes not te.nd to ill'pve or disprove any of the i8-
t·r 

, sues in this case, and we ask that the witness not be 
,r 

" 
6 permitted to answer, an4 that this line of cross-examine-

. . ~. 

7 tion - .. of direct examination ~;.. be abandoned. 

81 THE PRESIDENT: ;It 1:S oertain1y ob'jectionable 
I ' 

9\ as leading in a very important ~atter, but what about 

10 this question of relevan~t? ! will hear you on that. 

11 , The question is leading, and lead1.hg in a very important 
I ' 

121 matter, ,but it is also objected to as bt;:ihg irrelevant. 

13 I wou+d lik~ to hear you onthat~ 

14 (Addressing Mr. Warren) I ~ouid like to hear 

15 ):lim, N..r. Warreni 

16 MR. SUTTON: May it please the Tribunal, it 

17 is the purpose of the testimony to show whether or not 

18 there was an increase in the open sale of opium and 
I 

19 narcot1csin the City of Nanki~g following the occupa- ,I 
20 j tion; and if so,. ,something of the extent of tijat incr~ase 
21 THE PRESIDENT: ThEire is a count in the Indict- I 

22 J ment coveringnarcoties, but I forget the exact terms. I 
I 23 ! 

i 

24 i , 

I 

ment 
25 

, MR. SUTtON: It is to this charge in the Indict-I. 
, 

that this p('}rtion of the eviaence is directed. 

We].l, read the charge. I, THE PRESIDEf.iT: 
j 
--------~--------------~---- ---_I 
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MR. sutTON: Will your Honor excuse me for ' 

a moment whil~ I rind the proper place in the Indict .. 

meh1;? 

'rHE PRESIDENT: Well, th.is is a convenient 

time to adjourn. We will recess now until half past 

nine tomorrowmornlng. 

(Whereupon, at 1600, a1r~djournment·' 

was taken until Friday, 26 July 1946" at 0930.) 

- ..... -

l 
I 
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